
**B*HY **Uil?Y SUStfr{E$,f;
DEI'ELOP M E!{T COEPORANO!{

.,e*- "flffi*ffi {*#.eru p"ilruffi
f$,tAiffilfil$ r8 riis{" EUS$ffi$ StrGWfi:f

Albany County Business Development Corporation

Board of Directors Meeting
Virtual - Microsoft Teams

January 20,2021
B:30 AM

AGENDA

Welcome

1. Review of December 16,2021 Minutes Allen Maikets

2. Review of November 30,2021 Financials Allen Maikels

3. Review/Approvel of Audit Letter of Engagement Jeff Stone

4. Renewals:

Franklin & Levi, LLC

219 Warehouse Grill
B2B Washington, LLC

Kevin Cotalano

5. New Request:

Ms. Rifat Sharmin - Mugshots Caf6 Kevin Catalano

6. Other Business

7. Adjournment Allen Maikels

ffi



DIRECTORS PRESENT

DIRECTORS ABSENT

COUNSEL PRESENT

AACA STAFF PRESENT

GUESTS PRESENT

ii|."Hiit:1"f ccii r.,lTY sL,,ixil Es$
llEirEl-SFivi gi,JT *SFiPSfr riTl*l*

ir,,i. 
"'lli*f i u-*;,ii,l F"l.;;,ii"l.

rrrri4,{Cl,VC -lC |t-:EL llirgJN:SS S&OryIfl

Board of Darector$ MEeting Minutes
December 15tn, 2021

Nancy Carey Cassidy, Marcus Pryol George Penn. Pamela Lansing, Jeffrey Stone

Andrew Joyce, Allen Maikels

John Hartzell, Madeline Kauffman

Kevin O'Connor, Kevin Catalano, Melanie LaRose, Luc Rogers

Caitlin O'Brien, representing Albany County Legislature Chairman- Andrew.loyce

Ms. Carey Cassidy called the meeting to order at 8:32 a.m.

Ms. Carey Cassidy presented the minutes from the October 281h,2A?!, meeting. Mr. Stone rnotioned to approve, Ms
Lansing seconded, and all were in favor.

Ms. Carey Cassidy presented the ACBDC / Chamber Q3 Voucher. Mr. Stone motioned to approve as presented, Ms.
Carey Cassidy seconded, and all were in favor.

Mr. Catalano presented the renewal for Centrotherm Eco System. Ms. Lansing motioned to approve as presented
including releasing the prior owner's personal guarantee and release of investment account as collateral. Mr. Stone
seconded; all were in favor.

Mr. Catalano presented the renewal for GIG Computer, lnc. Ms. Lansing motioned to approve as presented, Mr. Stone
seconded; all were in favor.

Mr. Catalano presented the renewal for Kingfield Associates, LTD. Ms. Lansing motioned to approve, Mr- Stone
seconded; all were in favor.

Mr. Catalano presented the renewal for Xander 41, LLC. Ms. Lansing motioned to approve, Mr. Stone seconded; all were
in favor.

Mr. Stone motioned to adjourn the meeting at 8:59 a.m., Mr. Carey Cassidy second€d, and all were in favor.

Respectfully submitted,

Allen Maikels, SecretarylTreasurer



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Statement of Net Position

As of November 30, 202{

Total

,ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

Restricted Gash

M&T 4113 Al Tech Operating

M&T MM 3324 ALTECH ACBDC

Total Restricted Cash

Unrestricted Cash

M&T 3994 CRAF Operating

M&T ACBDC Corp Checking 4105

Total Unrestricted Cash

Total Bank Accounts

Accounts Receivable

Accrued Loan lnterest

Bad Debt Allowance

Loans Receivable-Al Tech LT

Total Accounts Receivable

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Accumulated Depreciation

Furniture & Fixtures

Total Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Loan lnterest

Due to,Advance Albany Co Alliance

Due to the Chamber

Total Accounts Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity

Net Assets

Retained Earnings

Trust Assets

Net lncome

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

2,370,154.34

4,5'13,828.08

$ 6,883,982.42

300

21,353.94

$ 21,356.94

$ 6,S05,339.36

$ 12,498,964-17

$ 19,404,303.53

-6,588 00

6,588.00

0.00

$ 19,404,303.53

5,000.00

277.00

103,690 1I

2.74

108,969.85

{08,969.85

{08,969.85

6,176,904.00

15,650,961 .00

-2,532,531.32

19,295,333.68

19,404,303.53

"**These financial statements omit the statement of cash flow and substantially all disclosures required by US GAAP.

They have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation agreement, and therefore no assurance is provided on them.***

$

$

$

$

$

52,929.00

-196.416 00

12,642,451.17

$



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

January - November,2021

Total

lncome

Application Fees

Bank lnterest

Contrib with Donor Restrictions

Loan lnterest Earned

Total lncome

Gross Profit

Expenses

Agency Fee

Application Fee

Bank Fees

Late Fees

Professional Fees (Not Agency)

Tax Filing Fee

Transfer of Loan Fund

Total Expenses

Net Operating Income

Other Expenses

Reconciliation Discrepancies

Total Other Expenses

Net Other lncome

Net lncome

13,500.00

2,233.36

1,900,875.00

419,421 .59

$ 2,336,029.95

$ 2,336,029.95

246,046.11

13,500,00

45.00

-80.00

65,493 00

750.00

4,542,807.00

$ 4,868,561,11

-$ 2,532,531.16

0.16

$ 0.16

0.16

2,532,531.32

***These financial statements omit the statement of cash flow and substantially all disclosures required by US GAAP.

They have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation agreement, and therefore no assurance is provided on them.**

-$

-$



Bonadio &Co., np

6 Wembley Court
Aibany, New York 122O5

p (s]B) 464-4080
f $14) 464-4447

www.bonadio.com

ALBANY. BATAVIA. BUFFALO. DALLAS. EASTAURORA. NYMETROAREA. ROCHESTER. RUTLAND'SYRACUSE ' UTiCA

December 23,2021

Albany County Business Development Corporation
Attn. Kevin O'Connor
112 State Street, Room 1200
Albany, NY 12207

Dear Kevin

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide for
Albany County Business Development Corporation for the year ended December
31,2021.

Audit Scope and Objectives
We will audit the financial statements of Albany County Business Development
Corporation (the Organization), which comprise the statement of financial position
as of December 31 ,2021 , the related statements of activities, functional expenses,
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements (the financial statements). Also, the following supplementary
information accompanying the financial statementswill be subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financialstatements
or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS), and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial
statements as a whole, in a separate written report accompanying our auditor's
report on the financial statements or in a report combined with our auditor's report
on the financial statements:

1) Schedule of expenditures of federal awards

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion about
whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the
fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph
when considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Sfandards will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based
on the financial statements. The objective also includes reporting on:



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Page 2

r lnternal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the
financial statements in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards.

r lnternal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of
opinion) on compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal
awards that could have a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance with the
Single Audit Act Amendments of '1996 and Title 2 U.S. Cade of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requiremenfs, Cosf Pinciples, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance).

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements and Single Audit
The Goyern ment Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on

compliance and other matters will include a paragraph that states that (1) the purpose of the report is
solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control or on
compliance, and (2) the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance. The Uniform
Guidance report on internal control over compliance will include a paragraph that states that the
purpose of the report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Both reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States of America; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996;

and the provisions of the Uniform Guidance, and will include tests of accounting records, a
determination of major program(s) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, and other procedures
we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion. As part of an audit in accordance
with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We will issue written reports upon completion of our single audit. Our reports will be addressed to the
Board of Directors and l\Ianagement of Albany County Business Development Corporation. We cannot
provide assurance that an unmodifled opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it
is necessary for us to modiff our opinion or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph. lf
our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. lf
circumstances occur related to the condition of your records, the availability of sufficient, appropriate
audit evidence, or the existence of a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial
statements caused by error, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which in our
professional judgment prevent us from completing the audit or forming an opinion on the financial
statements, we retain the right to take any course of action permitted by professional standards,
including declining to express an opinion or issue a report, or withdrawing from the engagement.

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3)

misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable
to the Organization or to acts by management gr employees acting on behalf of the Organization.
Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective , Govemment Auditing Standards do not



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Page 3

expect auditors to perform specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in flnancial audits nor do they
expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal
control, and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that
material misstatements or noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit
is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards. ln addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial
misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material
effect on the financial statements or on major programs. However, we will inform the appropriate level
of management of any material errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets
that come to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations
of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. We will
include such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit. Our responsibility as auditors is limited
to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not
engaged as auditors.

The auditors' procedures do not include testing compliance with laws and regulations in any jurisdiction
related to Medicare and Medicaid antifraud and abuse. lt is the responsibility of management of the
Organization, with the oversight of those charged with governance, to ensure that the Organization's
operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations, including
compliance with the provision of laws and regulations that determine the reported amounts and
disclosures in the Organization's financial statements. Therefore, management's responsibilities for
compliance with laws and regulations applicable to its operations, include, but are not limited to, those
related to Medicare and Medicaid antifraud and abuse statutes.

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the
accounts and direct confirmation of receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by
correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will
request written representations from the Organization's attorneys as part of the engagement, and they
may bill you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written
representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; schedule of
expenditures of federal awards; federal award programs; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and related matters; and other responsibilities required by generally accepted
auditing standards.

We have identified the following significant risks of material misstatement as part of our audit planning:

o Risk of management override of controls
o Fraudulent revenue recognition

Aud it Proced ures-lnternal Gontrol
We will obtain an understanding of the Organization and its environment, including intemal control
relevant to the audit, sufficient to identiff and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to eror or fraud, and to design arN-perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain evidence that is sufftcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the
override of internal control. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain
controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the
financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Page 4

other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our
tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal
control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant
to Government Auditing Standards.

As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate
the effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or
detecting material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal
award program. However, our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion
on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued
pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify signiflcant deficiencies
or material weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we
willcommunicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related matters
that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards, Government Auditing
Sfandards, and the Uniform Guidance.

Audit Procedures - Gompliance
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we will perform tests of the Organization's compliance with provisions of applicable
laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of
those procedures will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance, and we will not express such
an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the auditee has complied with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of federal awards applicable to major programs, Our procedures will consist of tests of
transactions and other applicable procedures described in lhe OMB Compliance Supplement for the
types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Organization's major programs. For federal programs that are included in the 2021 Compliance
Supplement, our compliance and internal control procedures will relate to the compliance
requirements that the 2021 Compliance Supplement identifies as being subject to audit. The purpose
of these procedures will be to express an opinion on the Organization's compliance with requirements
applicable to each of its major programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform
Guidance.

Other Services
We will prepare the Organization's federal and state information and income tax returns for the year
ended December 31,2021for the federal and New York jurisdictions, as outlined in our separate
engagement letter based on information provided by you.

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards,
related notes, and data collection form of the Organization in conformi$ with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles and the Uniform Guidance based on information provided by you.

These non-audit services do not constitute an audit under Govemment Auditing Sfandards and such
services will not be conducted in accordance with Govemment,Auditing Sfandards.

We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards, including the
Statements on Standards for Tax Services issued by the American lnstitute of Certified Public
Accountants. The other services are limited to the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of
federal awards, and related notes, and tax services previously ciefined. We, in our sole professional
judgment, reserye the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be
construed as assuming management responsibilities. We will advise management with regard to tax



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Page 5

positions taken in the preparation of the tax return, but management must make all decisions with
regard to those matters.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements and Single Audit
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for

{1) designing, implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, including internal controls over federal awards, and for evaluating and
monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; (2) following
laws and regulations; (3) ensuring that there is reasonable assurance that government programs are
administered in compliance with compliance requirements; and (4) ensuring that management and
financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for
implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting
prinoples; for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, and all accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles; and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations (including
federal statutes) and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements (including award agreements).
Your responsibilities also include identiffing significant contractor relationships in which the contractor
has responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that information.

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to
us, and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing
us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, identification of all related
parties and all related-pafi relationships and transactions, and other matters; (2) access to personnel,

accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other information as needed to perform an

audit under the Uniform Guidance; (3) additional information that we may request for the purpose of
the audit; and (4) unrestricted access to persons within the Organization from whom we determine it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and
confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected
misstatements aggregated by us during the cunent engagement and pedaining to the latest period
presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a
whole,

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the Organization involving (1)

management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the
fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing
us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Organization received
in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. ln addition,
you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the Organization complies with applicable laws,
regulations, eontracts, agreements, and grants. Management is also responsible for taking timely and

appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements that we report. Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, it is

management's responsibility to evaluate and monitor noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations,
and the terms and conditions of federal awards; take prompt action when instances of noncompliance
are identified including noncompliance identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take
corrective action on reported audit findings; and prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings
and a separate corrective action plan. The summary schedule of prior audit findings should be

available for our review no later than the date of commencement of field work.



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Page 6

\Nith regard to including the auditor's report in an exempt offering document, you agree that the
aforementioned auditor's report, or reference to our Firm, will not be included in any such offering
document without our prior permission or consent. Any agreement to perform work in connection with
an exempt offering document, including an agreement to provide permission or consent, will be a
separate engagement.

You are responsible for identiffing all federal awards received and understanding and complying with
the compliance requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
(including notes and noncash assistance received, and COVID-19-related concepts, such as lost
revenues, if applicable) in conformity with the Uniform Guidance. You agree to include our report on
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in any document that contains and indicates that we
have reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. You also agree to include the audited
financial statements with any presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards that
includes our report thereon or make the audited financial statements readily available to intended
users of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards no later than the date the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is issued with our report thereon. Your responsibilities include
acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation
of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (2) you
believe the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, including its form and content, is stated fairly
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not
changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changesi;
and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information. which we have
been engaged to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You
agree to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains, and
indicates that we have reported on, the supplementary information. You also agree to include the
audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our
report thereon or make the audited financial statements readily available for users of the
supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued with our
report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter
that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with
GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly
presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not
changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes);
and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

fvlanagement is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report
copies of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies
related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility
includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations
resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, perfonnance audits, or studies. You are also
responsible for providing management's views on our curent findings, conclusions, and
recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions for the report, and for the timing and
format for providing that information.

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial
statements published electronically on the Organization's website, management understands that
electronic sites are a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the
information contained in these sites orto considerthe consistency of other information in the electronic
site with the original document.



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Page 7

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the tax services, financlal statements,
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes, and any other non-audit services we
provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation lefterthe tax services
provided and our assistance with preparation of the financial statements, the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards, and related notes and that you have evaluated the adequacy of our services and
have reviewed and approved the results of the services, the financial statements, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted
responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the non-audit services by designating an
individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate
the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them.

ln connection with this engagement, we may communicate with you or others via email transmission.
As emails can be intercepted and read, disclosed, or othenruise used or communicated by an
unintended third party, or may not be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed and
only to such padies, we cannot guarantee or warrant that emails from us will be properly delivered and
read only by the addressee. Therefore, we specifically disclaim and waive any liability or responsibility
whatsoever for interception or unintentional disclosure of emails transmitted by us in connection with
the performance of this engagement. ln that regard, you agree that we shall have no liability for any
loss or damage to any person or entity resulting from the use of email transmissions, including any
consequential, incidental, direct, indirect, or special damages, such as loss of revenues or anticipated
profits, or disclosure or communication of confidential or proprietary information,

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other
We may from time to time and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in
serving your account. We may share confidential information about you with these service providers
but remain committed to maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly,
we maintain internal policies, procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal
information. ln addition, we will secure confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain
the confidentiality of your information and we will take reasonable precautions to determine that they
have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential
information to others. ln the event that we are unable to secure an appropriate confidentiality
agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your confidential
information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work
provided by any such third-party service providers.

Certain communications involving tax advice are privileged and not subject to disclosure to the lRS.
By disclosing the eontents of those communications to anyone, or by turning over information about
those communications to the government, you, your employees, or agents may be waiving this
privilege. To protect this right to privileged communication, please consult with us or your attorney
prior to disclosing any information about our tax advice. Should you decide that it is appropriate for us
to disclose any potentially privileged communication, you agree to provide us with written, advance
authority to make that disclosure.

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, and other
conflrmations and schedules we request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing. We
will schedule the engagement based in part on deadlines, working conditions, and the availability of
your key personnel. We will plan the engagement based on the assumption that your personnelwill
cooperate and provide assistance by performing tasks such as preparing requested schedules,
retrieving supporting documents, and preparing confirmations. lf, for whatever reason, your personnel
are unavailable to provide the necessary assistance in a timely manner, it may substantially increase
the work we have to do to complete the engagement within the established deadlines, resulting in an
increase in fees over our original fee estimate.

At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection
Form that summarizes our audit findings. lt is management's responsibility to electronically submit the



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Page 8

reporting package (including financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards,
summary schedule of prior audit findings, auditofs reports, and corrective action plan) along with the
Data Collection Form to the federal audit clearinghouse. We will coordinate with you the electronic
submission and certification. lf applicable, we will provide copies of our report for you to include with
the reporting package you will submit to passthrough entlties. The Data Collection Form and the
reporting package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor's
reports or nine months after the end of the audit period.

We will provide copies of our reports to the Organization; however, management is responsible for
distribution of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or
containing privileged and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for
public inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Bonadio & Co., LLP and constitutes
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation
and appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to the or its
designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability
Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight
responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. lf requested, access to such audit
documentation will be provided under the supervision of Bonadio & Co., LLP personnel. Furthermore,
upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties.
These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others,
including other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the
report release date or for any additional period requested by the. lf we are aware that a federal
awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the
party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation"

Kevin C. Testo is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and
signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. To ensure that Bonadio & Co. LLP's
independence is not impaired underthe AICPA Code of Frofessional Canduct, you agree to inform
the engagement partner before entering into any substantive employment discussions with any of our
personnel.

We estimate that our fees for the audit will be $15,000 and $1,300 for the information returns. We
estimate that our fees for the single audit will be. The fee estimate is based on anticipated cooperation
from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered
during the audit. lf significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a
new fee estimate before we incur the additional eosts. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered
each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. lf we elect to terminate our services
for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of
termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all
time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of termination.
You may request that we perform additional services not addressed in this engagement letter. lf this
occurs, we will communicate with you concerning the scope of the additional services and the
estimated fees. We also may issue a separate engagement letter covering the additionalservices. ln
the absence of any other written communication from us documenting such additional services, our
services will continue to be governed by the terms of this engagement letter.

You agree that any dispute (other than our efforts to collect an outstanding invoice) that may arise
regarding the meaning, performance or enforcement of this engagement or any prior engagement that
we have performed for you, will, prior to resorting to litigation, be submitted to mediation, and that the
parties will engage in the mediation process in good faith once a written request to mediate has been
given by any party to the engagement. Any mediation initiated as a result of this engagement shall be



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Page 9

administered within the county of Monroe, New York and any ensuing litigation shall be conducted
within said county, according to New York law. The results of any such mediation shall be binding only
upon agreement of each parly to be bound. The costs of any mediation proceeding shall be shared
equally by the participating parties.

You have requested that we provide you with a copy of our most recent extemal peer review report
and any subsequent reports received during the contract period. Accordingly, our 2020 peer review
report accompanies this lefter.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this letter accurately summarizes
the signiflcant terms of our engagement. lf you have any questions, please let us know. lf you agree
with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return
it to us.

Very truly yours,

BONADIO & CO., LLP

By:
Kevin C. Testo, CPA
Partner

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Albany County Business Development Corporation

Management Signature Date



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Page 10

re
lr-i' :f l, r| t

its;*:'t cu th* Fu= ; !-r:tee *f +rur.-' Ln:cl

f+ tle Fuzer: cf
3,:u'ic lc {r.. LLI
mi the );ae*arl Fga le::e,s i*I:m;ee

'.1'e i:', e re',iep.ei tJ:e :1r:n= tf qu.:i :l=all f+: th: mecueng ui ;u'j:txg ;ru:lr:e sf Bs:;dio 't { g , ILF lrhs
fl::r:l :.ppkr:.e :c e:lif,gtEr:Et: nrt :u:.- ect tr 3t -i'SE ps:mert i::;er'Ecn u eIfert I'er $e r-e;r: eoie,j.

-ipr:1 3,1. i*lit. *1. peu re'.-iea $r; r':rirrt*l i: :cror.i:'.mmr& :he i:*dali: fcr Falbrrug ,ud F-epe:t-'rg +r
!*r Ae',ie'r.': :;t;'bii:!ed b1 iie F::r J-e-,:e; j*arC cf r[: -{xe4:rr h:tr.tgt: oI C*rrf,ei !']f,rjt .itscut;Brl
i!r..rCad'-1

i :ru*r r-f ibe :.;aqe, cb.ecri-rt:. :c*pe. .i:r.nr'u rl'. :ai the p:c;eiue: pat'+ruei u 3 !:':tiu !.e,"reit r:
d:',cr'nedntle !truil*'u,i Le:'*tui;-.r;ir-t1 :,-.:i:r.irE:1r,i:u:.:J-.. lte:,ro;.-L- al-,t url:de:;'.ue:p-unao
+l'icrr :lga-:u:n: ide:r,fi.ed r: u.tr:ia-f*ru€d a: :epr,,fisd i: ccntoruir,rrth r;rpLr;..hie pretle::ra:el ::aldtd:. if
an-r'. ue el rlu;*ed b. r --+r : r', :-"u s tc ieterue r lEa l e',aa\u lrEg.

Fimt: fterg*u*iLiliqr

The &me is resp*re&le f* deaimrq a :-x':.teer of qurli*!. c*:r&cl ai co,ryilf isg vr1& it m prcrid: &e SrEl ffi&
reareeble a:ruratEe *f pu&miap ad epstiq ia emfcrrritj' ni& apphezhl* Frofusi*nal euad:rdi ie all
meirri:l r*pects- ft* firm L *i:+:e4*matie ib era\rating aetlm b rydy rceii:t* trgagew* ileeoeed as

not lwforeed €r r'€*,riui ia eer&,ruit1 a;irh pr+fel:iooai *rilexis, rbs appro3rian- c.d fer reor*diati*g
x.ealxer:u in rtl s1 EtE n ftf qelib" $rirol if u4i.

?++r R*ri*x *rr q B*:potsdhiliq

&u reryrns.iBilig ir r+ erya'*:l a:r cllirliffi sa &e ils6n ef the :9:tas cf qr:*lrr-e mltRl ed &* fl:*s': e{6S&:B{e
ttere*.i& b;sed &n ts:f rei"r*x.

Rrquired S*ketiolrl atd {,op:iderltisa;

F.rEzgeaurt* :ele*ted for ml;w xeLa&d egEages*st5 perf$rerd ua&r Gar.s?rwwr ,Aildifiirrg $rclt's:"ds,
iueluding rcopika* ardits mder the S.fuek Arnd* &eq *udrb cf eeploye beeedt plaas, m ar#it F*rttnu*d Esdet
F&ICL{. m au** of : k*,ksd*alu, ad exaimri*as sf :mire crg*ai=:tios [5*C I red ,1*C ] erElaEFurmttl.

As part ef +w 5ro' redes. ple cosidered rcttr*: $' regrdsrmy atiea: as eouauairated ta the &:!. if applicabla.

ia detemtrdgtts lEture Erd€rseEi ef arll F*!,{Edsr*!.

+einioa

l:r srr oBici*r. &* :yrxru el qnalit-+" eEot*i {cr t}e aerorsting ild aud}iiag pra*tice af Bs.edis & ft., I}F
apyiieahtre to *rgagenart: c*t nrhje*t to F{AOE peramor iupertion ia effert fm r}e y** er&d F.pnl 3t- 301fl,
ba! h,een mitably desiggad a:$i :flssiiEd *'ii& t* prarirh &r fim *:tt rearEas&tre ellrrilEce ef 6.*rwiag aad

rap+rtiog m e*n&tnify mt& apEirrble prc&r:icml rurdad: in aI e*teriai reipeeq5. Firus rillrceei*re 3 rz+i*F of
1x$j-.1lssi *{rfi .dq*flisrr:rftsi o;J&if. Bemdis & Co., LLP }a: re*eited e peu eti*w ratirg ef;mrs-

#-X6*X"** i $***
Sarou f,e*g* Lmrkima
Sctcbs i9. 1018

p&N



Bonadio &Co ItP
Certified Public Accountants

6 Wembley Court
Albany, New York 12205

p (518) 464-4O8O
f (518) 464-40A7

www.bonadio.com

ALBANY. BATAVIA. BUFFALO. D,ALLAS. EASTAURORA. NYMETROAREA. ROCHESTER. RUTLAND. SYRACUSE. UTICA

December 23,2421

Albany County Business Development Corporation
Attn: Kevin O'Connor
112 State Street, Room 1200
Albany, NY 12207

Dear Kevin

This letter is to confirm and specify the terms of our engagement with Albany
County Business Development Corporation for the year ended December 31 ,2A21
and to clarifu the nature and extent of the tax services we will provlde.

Entire Agreement
This engagement letter ("Agreement") constitutes the entire agreement between
the client to whom such engagement letter is addressed, and any other legal
entities referred to therein ("Client' or "you") and Bonadio & Co., LLP, a New York
limited liability partnership ("Bonadio & Co., LLP" "we" or "us"), regarding the
services described in the engagement letter.

Responsibilities of Bonadio & Co., LLP

Our engagement is limited to performing the following services:

a. Tax Return Services

Tax return services include the preparation of the federal and state information
returns listed on Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

We will perform our services on the basis of the information you have provided and
in consideration of the applicable federal, foreign, state or local tax laws,
regulations and associated interpretations relative to the appropriate jurisdiction as
of the date the services are provided. Tax laws and regulations are subject to
change at any time, and such changes rnay be retroactive in effect and may be
applicable to advice given or other services rendered before their effective dates.
We do not assume responsibility for such changes occurring after the date we have
completed our services.

This engagement does not cover the preparation of any tax returns not listed in
this letter, financial statements, or other services which, if we are to provide, will
be covered under a separate engagement letter.

Responsibilities of the Client
You are responsible for the safeguarding of assets, the proper recording of
transactions in the books of accounts, the substantial accuracy of the financial
records, and the full and accurate disclosure of all relevant facts affecting the
return(s) to us. You also have final responsibility for the tax return and, therefore,
the appropriate officials should review the return carefully before an authorized
officer signs and files it.



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Page2

Responsibilities of the Client (Continued)
You are responsible for assuming all management responsibilities, and for overseeing any services
we provide by designating an individual, preferably within senior management, who possesses
suitable skill, knowledge, or experience. ln addition, you are responsible for evaluating the adequacy
and results of the services performed and accepting responsibility for the results of such services.

We may provide you with a questionnaire or other document requesting specific information.
Completing those forms will assist us in making sure you are well served for a reasonable fee. We will
not verifu the information you give us, however, we may ask for additional clarification of some
information.

If, during our work, we discover information that affects prior-year tax returns, we will make you aware
of the facts. However, we cannot be responsible for identifying all items that may affect prior-year
returns. lf you become aware of such information during the year, please contact us to discuss the
best resolution of the issue. We will be happy to prepare appropriate amended returns as a separate
engagement.

Our work in connection with the preparation of the tax return(s) does not include
designed to discover defalcations or other irregularities, should any exist. The returns
solely from information provided to us without verification by us.

any
will

procedures
be prepared

Electronic Gommunications
ln performing services under this Agreement, Bonadio & Co., LLP and/or Client may wish to
communicate electronically either via facsimile, electronic mail, or similar methods (collectively. "E-
mail"). However, the eleclronic transmission of information cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error
free, and such information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete
or otherwise be adversely affected or unsafe to use. Unless you notify us otherwise, we shall regard
your acceptance of this Agreement as including your consent to use E'mail. All risks related to your
business and connected with the use of E-mail are borne by you and are not our responsibility.

Electronic Filing
Your return may be electronically filed with the IRS and states requiring electronic filing. We will provide
you with a copy of your final returns for review prior to electronic transmission. The IRS requires that
you sign an e-file authorization form indicating that you have reviewed the retum, it is correct to the
best of your knowledge, and you authorize us to submit it electronically. We cannot transmit any return
untilwe have the appropriate signed authorizations.

Foreign Asset Responsibilities
Certain entities may be required to electronically file Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial
Accounts (FBAR) with the U.S. Department of the Treasury. Failure to comply with the filing
requirements may result in significant civil and criminal penalties.

We are able to assist you in the preparation of these foreign account filings if you request. lf you would
like us to prepare these filings, or if you have questions concerning your filing obligations, you should
contact us as soon as possible and provide us with all requested information,



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Page 3

Disclosure
The lnternal Revenue Code and regulations impose preparation and disclosure standards with
noncompliance penalties on both the preparer of a tax return and on the taxpayer. To avoid exposure
to these penalties, it may be necessary in some cases to make certain disclosures to you andior in

the tax return concerning positions taken on the return that do not meet these standards. Accordingly,
we will advise you if we identiff such a situation, and we will discuss those tax positions that may
increase the risk of exposure to penalties and any recommended disclosures with you before
completing the preparation of the return. lf we conclude that we are obligated to disclose a position
and you refuse to permit the disclosure, we reserve the right to withdraw from the engagement.
Likewise, where we disagree about the obligation to disclose a position, you also have a right to choose
another professional to prepare your return. ln either event, you agree to compensate us for our
services to the date of withdrawal. Our engagement with you will terminate upon our withdrawal.

The IRS permits you to authorize us to discuss, on a limited basis, aspects of your return for one year
after the return's due date. Your consent to such a discussion is evidenced by checking a box on the
return. Unless you tell us othenruise, we will check that box authorizing the IRS to discuss your return
with us.

Certain communications involving tax advice are privileged and not subject to disclosure to the lRS.
By disclosing the contents of those communications to anyone, or by turning over information about
those communications to the government, you, your employees, or agents may be waiving this
privilege. To protect this right to privileged communication, please consult with us or your attorney
prior to disclosing any information about our tax advice. Should you decide that it is appropriate for us
to disclose any potentially privileged communication, you agree to provide us with written, advance
authority to make that disclosure.

Should we receive any request for the disclosure of privileged information from any third party,
including a subpoena or IRS summons, we will notify you. ln the event you direct us not to make the
disclosure, you agree to hold us harmless from any expenses incurred in defending the privilege,
including, by way of illustration only, our attorney's fees, court costs, outside adviser's costs, or
penalties or fines imposed as a result of your asserting the privilege or your direction to us to assert
the privilege.

Recordkeeping
It is our policy to keep records for seven years. However, we do not keep any of your original records,
so we will return those to you upon the completion of the engagement. When records are returned to
you, it is your responsibility to retain and protect the records for possible future use, including potential
examination by governmental or regulatory agencies. A copy of your return should be kept indefinitely.

The return(s) may be selected for review by the taxing authorities. ln the event of an audit, you may
be requested to produce documents, records, or other evidence to substantiate the items of income
and deduction shown on a tax return. Any proposed adjustments by the examining agent are subject
to certain rights of appeal. ln the event of a tax examination, we will be available, upon request, to
represent you under the terms of a separate engagement letter.

Fees
Our fees for tax services will be based in part upon the amount of time required at our standard billing
rates for the personnel working on the engagement, plus out-of-pocket expenses. All invoices are due
and payable upon presentation. Amounts not paid within 45 days from the invoice date will be subject
to a late payment charge of 1.5o/o per month.

Our fee estimate for the tax return preparation services listed are outlined in Exhibit A.



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Page 4

Fees {Gontinued}
Fees for additional tax services that fall outside the scope of this tax compliance engagement are
based upon our standard billing rates for the personnel working on the engagement. Billing rates vary
depending on the experience level of the staff member providing the services.

Limitation of Liability
All services will be rendered by and under the supervision of qualified staff in accordance with the
AICPA's Statements on Standards for Tax Services and the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement. Bonadio & Co., LLP makes no other representation or warranty regarding either the
services to be provided or any Deliverables; in particular, and without limitation of the foregoing, any
express or implied warranties of fitness for a particular purpose, merchantability, warranties arising by
custom or usage in the profession, and warranties arising by operation of law are expressly disclaimed.

ln no event, unless it has been finally determined that Bonadio & Co., LLP was grossly negligent or
acted willfully or fraudulently, shall Bonadio & Co., LLP be liable to the client or any of its officers,
directors, employees or shareholders or to any other third party, whether a claim be in toft, contract or
othenrrrise for any amount in excess of the total professional fee paid by you to us under this agreement
for the particular service to which such claim relates. ln no event shall Bonadio & Co., LLP be liable
for any special, consequential, indirect, exemplary, punitive, Iost profits or similar damages, even if we
have been apprised of the possibility thereof.

lndemnification
Client agrees to indemni! and hold harmless Bonadio & Co., LLP, and its personnel from any and all
Third-Party claims, liabilities, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attomey fees, arising from or
relating to the services under this Agreement, except to the extent finally determined to have resulted
from the gross negligence, willful misconduct or fraudulent behavior of Bonadio & Co., LLP relating to
such services.

Dispute Resolution
You agree that any dispute (other than our efforts to collect an outstanding invoice) that may arise
regarding the meaning, performance or enforcement of this engagement or any prior engagement that
we have performed for you, will, prior to resorting to litigation, be submitted to mediation, and that the
parties will engage in the mediation process in good faith once a written request to mediate has been
given by any parly to the engagement. Any mediation initiated as a result of this engagement shall be
idministered within the county of Monroe, New York and any ensuing litigation shall be conducted
within said county, according to New York law. The results of any such mediation shall be binding only
upon agreement of each pafi to be bound. The costs of any mediation proceeding shall be shared
equally by the participating parties.

ln the unlikely event that differences concerning this Agreement or our services provided hereunder
should arise that are not resolved by mutual agreement, to facilitate judicial resolution and save time
and expense of both parties, Bonadio & Co., LLP and the Client agree not to demand a trial by jury in
any action, proceeding or counterclaim arising out of or relating to this Agreement.

We have the right to withdraw from this engagement if you do not provide us with any information we
request in a timely manner, refuse to cooperate with our reasonable requests, or misrepresent any
facts. Our withdrawal will release us from any obtigation to complete your return and will constitute
completion of our engagement. You agree to compensate us for our time and out-of-pocket expenses
through the date of our withdrawal.

lf this letter correctly describes your understanding of our engagements, please sign below and return
one copy to our office. We will require a signed copy of this engagement letter back from you before
we provide you with your income tax returns or financial statements. lf you disagree with any of these
terms, please notiff us immediately.



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Page 5

We want to express our appreciation for this opportunity to work with you.

Very truly yours,

BONADIO & CO., LLP

By:
Kevin C. Testo, CPA
Padner

RESPONSE:
This letter correctly $ets forth the understanding of the Organization:

Management signature

Exhibit A
List T P
EntiU Year-end Forms Fee
Albany County Business
Development Corporation

December
31,2021

IRS Form
Organization
lncome Tax

990, Retum ot
Exempt From

NYS Form CHAR500, NYS
Annual Filing for Charitable
Organizations

$1,300



ALTECH LOAN FUND - MATURITY EXTENSION REQUEST

Company: Franklin & [evi, ILC

Operating Company: Pixies Salon, lnc. Account #: A1T515141

Address: 1"274 CentralAve Disbursed: sSo,ooo.oo

Albany NY 12205 Amount: 544,128.69

Phone: Maturity: November L,202L

Contact Name: Kathleen Carroll lnterest Rate: 2.63%

Repayment Terms: s403.76

Principal Balance for Renewal: 544,L28.69

Proposed Renewal Terms: 5O-month term, with a 10 amortization

Proposed lnterest Rate (75% of WSJ Prime): 2.44o/o

Proposed Renewal Repayment:

Business Description: Hair salon located on Central Ave in Colonie.

Collateral: A second position mortgage on 7274 Central Avenue in Albany and a 2nd position UCC lien on all assets of Pixie Salon, lnc.

behind NBT Bank.

Use of Loan Proceeds: Financing for the relocation and expansion of her business to 1274 Central Avenue in Albany

Guarantors: Personal guarantee of Kathleen Carroll, along with the guaranty of Franklin and Levi, LLC and the corporate guaranty of

Pixie Salon, lnc

2021Site Review lnfo:

Conducted By: Kevin Catalano Visit Date: November tL,2O2t

Principal Balance as of Date of
Review: $403.76

Repayment
Experience:

Paid as agreed

Violations: None

Financial lnformation: Borrower provided 2020 accountant prepared tax returns

Narrative & FinancialAnalysis: Had a meeting with the owner of Pixie's and their lender at NBT Bank, Derek. They are

current with NBT Bank. The discussion revolved around a new request for 560,000 - 585,000 in new funds to make

improvements to the salon as the COVID protocols have shortened the life of the stations. They are also looking to increase

electrical capacity in part of the salon as they have been spreading out the stylists; paint the salon; replace some

workstations; and make general repairs and improvements.

Revenue was down the past two year due to COVID, but the owners feel they are towards the end and expect 2022 to be

a strong year. While revenue was down in 2020 and 202L, the owner did apply for and receive PPP funds that allowed

them to remain open.



Condition of Physical Collateral:
(Staff Observation): Building appears to be in above average condition, Salon has made significant interior modifications

to create a safe working environment for employees and their client base. The owner is interested in seeking another Al

Tech Loan to replace some of the stations and chairs as the bleach and cleaning products they are using to follow COVID

protocols is adversely affecting the look and life of the equipment.

Employment:
FTEs. 8 employees, they are currently looking for employees, a stylist, and a front desk individual

Employment goals met: why/why not:
Yes. The company has not met their goal of 15 employees with open positions at the time of this request

Notes:
Writer realized that the Loan matured and reached out to Madeline Kauffman at Nolan, Heller & Kauffman to discuss

options. Her advice was to send a Reservation of Rights letter outlining the situation and requesting the required

financials. Writer was provided a template, completed, and sent the letters to each affected Borrower by USPS on

November 19,2021.

Copy of letter is attached for the Board's review



Summary 11205 Corp Returns

Sales

Returns and Allowances

cocs
Gross Profit

Operating Expenses

Officer Comp

Salaries and Wages

Repairs and Maintenance
Bad Debts

Rents

Taxes / Licenses

I nte rest

Depreciation
Advertising
Pension

Employee Benefits

Other Deductions

Total Operating Expenses

Less: other income

Less: Gain/loss sale of asset

Other Expenses

Net Profit

2019 2020

7L6,027

8,232
136,903

574,892

68,035

350,281

8,808

12,780

37,355

4,865

8,585

7,31,1,

4,865

27,81_4

64,5!2
595,21,4

-24,322



Balance Sheet

Cash

Accounts Receivable

lnventory

other current assets

Current Assets

Loan to Shareholders

Buildings / Equipment

Less Acc Depreciation
Land

Total Fixed Assets

lntangible Assets

Less Acc Amortization
Total lntangible Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Owners Equity

Accounts Payable

Mortgages Less then 1 year

Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Mortgages more than 1 year

Loans to Shareholders

Total Long-term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

CapitalStock

Owner's Equity

20L9 2020 YTD 2021

19,702

20,L64

39,866

1.08,785

-81,993

26,793

748
-748

0

66,659

6,658

52,465

59,133

5,000

2,5?6

2A,840

19,950

40,790

1.08,786

-90,578

18,208

58,998

21,613

58,726

80,339

5,000

-26,34L



ALTECH LOAN FUND - MATURITY EXTENSION REQUEST

Company: 219 Warehouse Grill, LLC

Operating Company: 219 Warehouse Grill, LLC Account #: ALT6L5L27

Address: 219 Wolf Road Disbursed: $250,000
Albany, NY 12205 Amount: S152,i.83.17

Phone: Maturity: November 1,202L
Contact Name: Connie Ware lnterest Rate: 2.63%

MitchellWare Repayment Terms: 52,371.56

Principal Balance for Renewal: $43,sLA.47

Proposed Renewal Terms: 60-month term based on a 10-year amortization

Proposed lnterest Rate (75% of WSJ Prime): 2.44%

Proposed Renewal Repayment:

Collateral: 2nd position UCC filing against 219 Warehouse Grill, LLC, subordinate to a L't position UCC filing held by NYBDC

Business Description: Restaurant and Grill specializing in barbeque.

Use of Loan Proceeds: Furnishings, Fixtures, and Equipment as well as remaining leasehold improvements and working capital

required to open new restaurant specializing in barbeque.

2021Site Review lnfo:

Conducted By: Kevin Catalano Visit Date: Nov 1, 2021

Principal Balance as of Date of
Review:

s!52,183.77
Repayment
Experience:

Paid as agreed.

Violations: None

Financial lnformation: lnternally prepared P&L for 2020 and 2A2L.

Narrative & FinancialAnalysis: Heading into 2020, the owners felt they were creating momentum and they were looking

forward to a profitable year, then in March COVID hit and their world changed. They are grateful for the relationship they

had with Pursuit Lenders as they were able to apply for and receive PPP funds to assist with 2020, in 2021 they applied

for and received EIDL (Economic lnjury Disaster Loan) through the SBA. Due to the funding, they received they feel they
are in a good position. Their biggest issue now is the omicron variant causing staffing shortages. They are trying to hire

additional staff everyday with little success. Due to staff shortages, the owners are forced to make daily decisions to open

or remain closed due to limited staff.

Condition of Physical Collateral:
(Staff Observation): the equipment looks to be in fair to good condition, the owner mentioned that COVID protocols,

wiping down of chairs, equipment and stations has caused the equipment to age prematurely. They are looking to
borrower more funds in early 2022 to replace some of the equipment in order to maintain the status of their salon.



Employment:
FTEs, 16 with several open positions, the owners are always looking to fill positions, including servers, bartenders, hosts

and kitchen staff.

Employment goals met: why/why not:
Not yet due to Covid. They hope to be back to a full staff as business improves.

Notes: Writer realized that the Loan matured and reached out to Madeline Kauffman at Nolan, Heller & Kauffman to
discuss options. Her advice was to send a Reservation of Rights letter outlining the situation and requesting the required
financials. Writer was provided a template, completed, and sent the letters to each affected Borrower by USPS on
November !9,2A21.

Copy of letter is attached for the Board's review



Internally Prepared

Sales

Returns and Allowances

COGS

Gross Profit

Operating Expenses

Advertising
Auto Expense

Cleaning Supplies

Advertising and Promotion

Entertainment Expense

Payroll

Bank Fees

lnterest
Equipment Rental

Computer and lnternet
I nsura nce

lnterest Exp

License and Permits

Postage and Delivery
Professional Fees

Office Exp

Uniforms

Repairs and Maintenace

Security System

Small Equipment

Utilities
Prop and School Taxes

Loan lnterest
Laundry & Linen Service

Rent

Telephone

Total Expenses

Net Ordinary lncome

Other lncome

Net lncome

2020 2027

853,730

360,822
492,909

1,053,638

479,384

574,254

1,360

822
L2,O54

1.,1.64

93

353,239

18,823

121.

4,647

3,L96

25,418
0

2,9!7
511

813

1.,597

0

L6,432
1.,23L

3,350

32,248

38,276

39,084

6,LL6
83,363

3,230
650,103

13,699

2,839
7,855

0

v0

357,O32

13,846

1.84

7,Ot6
274

18,080

103

39s

550

3,746

3,891

104

15,413

868

4,695
46,036

38,377

378,408

6,776

150,813

2,720
L,073,792

-L57,194

344,477

1.87,283

-499,538

L,OO7,645 Government PPP & EIDL Loans

508,107



Ba[ance Sheet

Cash

Accounts Receivable

lnventory

other current assets

Current Assets

Loan to Shareholders

Buildings / Equipment

Less Acc Depreciation
Land

Total Fixed Assets

lntangible Assets

Less Acc Amortization
Total lntangible Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Owners Equity

Accounts Payable

Mortgages Less then 1 year

Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Mortgages more than l year

Loans to Shareholders

Total Long-term Liabilities

Owner's Equity

2020 YTD 2021

L6,944
L,74L

15,651

5,2t3
39,549

53,977

25L,404

228,599

27,805

115,331

L2,639

3,755

6,L41
22,535

84,547

-50,886

379,636
72,055

19,805

2,722

474,2L9

41,782

256,982

233,758

23,224

539,225

22,253

308,765

12,974

343,988

94,264

40,798



AL TECH LOAN FUND - MATURITY EXTENSION REQUEST

Company: 828 Washington, [[C
Operating Company: Ambient Environmental, lnc. Account #: A1T515145

Address: 828 Washington Ave Disbursed: s210,000.00
Albany, NY Amount: 5L54,487.67

Phone: Maturity: April L,2022
Contact Name: Joella Viscusi lnterest Rate: 2.63%

Repayment Terms: $t,4so.2z

Principal Balance for Renewal: 5t54,487.67

Proposed Renewal Terms: 60-month term based on a 10-year amortization

Proposed lnterest Rate (75% of WSJ Prime): 2.44%

Proposed Renewal Repayment:

Collateral: A 2nd mortgage on the property located at 828 Washington Avenue, subordinate only to a 1't position mortgage held by

Kinderhook Bank, now Community Bank, NA. A 2nd position lien on all assets of both 828 Washington, LLC and Ambient Environmental,

lnc. Collateral assignment of life insurance on owner Joella Viscusi.

Business Description: Woman-owned Environmental testing and consulting firm.

Use of Loan Proceeds: Purchase of property for business expansion and relocation.

2021Site Review lnfo:

Conducted By: Kevin Catalano Visit Date: Nov 4, 2021

Principal Balance as of Date of
Review: $154,487.67

Repayment
Experience:

Paid as agreed

Violations: None

Financial lnformation: Borrower provided 2020 accountant prepared tax returns and internally prepared 2021 P&1.

Narrative & Financial Analysis: 2020 was a tough year with revenues and net income dropping significantly, the borrower
was able to access a PPP Loan and that help tremendously. Sales rebounded in 2021. as did profitability. The owner is

looking at 2020 as the past and moving forward. She expects no issues going forward as for the most part, her business is

deemed essential the main business provides testing for mold and lead paint remediation.

Condition of Physical Collateral:
(Staff Observation): the building remains in excellent condition with the owner continuing to invest in improvements to
the building and upgrading her equipment.

Employment:
FTEs. 18 with several open positions, the owner is always looking for qualified-licensed lead paint and mold technicians,

additionally she is looking for qualified Health and Safety Managers.



Employment goals met: why/why not:
Yes, the owner had met her employment goals.

Notes: None



Summary 11205 Corp Returns

Sales

Returns and Allowances

COGS

Gross Profit

Operating Expenses

Officer Comp

Salaries and Wages

Repairs and Maintenance
Auto and Truck Exp

Bad Debts

Rents

I nsurance

Taxes / Licenses

I nterest

Depreciation

Advertising
Pension

Employee Benefits

Other Deductions

Total Operating Expenses

Less: other income

Less: Gain/loss sale of asset

Other Expenses

Net Profit

20t9 2024 YrD 202L

3,308,759

2,Ozt,O2A

L,287,739

156,335

L47,930
49,803

90,000

136,928

90

4,544
3,301

14,635

34,852

306,113

9M,431

343,308

3,084,008

2,LBL,916

902,492

L54,937

LL6,O94

54,556

90,000

L34,870

5,L07

4,O34

20,059

53,052

308,322
94L,03L

-38,939

3,297,294

2,353,869

943,4L5

314,581

4A,r28
23,933

9,681.

90,000

106,741

9,42O

681

!82,785
777,950

165,465



Balance Sheet

Cash

Accounts Receivable

lnventory

other current assets

Current Assets

Loan to Shareholders

Buildings / Equipment

Less Acc Depreciation

Land

Total Fixed Assets

lntangible Assets

Less Acc Amortization

Total Intangible Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Owners Equity

Accounts Payable

Mortgages Less then 1 year

Other Current Liabilities
Tota J Current Liabilities

Mortgages more than l year

Loans to Shareholders

Tota I Long-term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Capital Stock

Owner's Equity

2019 2020 YTD 2021

267,298

9,350

276,659

254,726

-214,352

40,374

72,279

-37,478

34,80'.J.

351,833

44,966

306,290

186,498

9,35O

195,858

305,836

-250,009

55,827

677

677

72,279
-49,796

22,483

274,168

40,730

40,730

316,200 PPP Loan, has since been forgiven

44,866

1,88,572



1

Albany County Business Development Corp.
Al Tech Loan Fund

Loan Proposal
January 20,2022

BORROWER: Rifat Sharmin (Real Estate Holding Company to be formed)

REQUEST: $180,000(One-Hundred,Eighty-ThousandDollars)

TERM: 5-yearterm, based ona2}-year amortization

RATE: 75Yo of the Prime Rate, currently 2.44%

PROJECT: Mugshots Caf6 ('Mugshots") is a locally well-established coffee
shop located in downtown Albany, directly across the street from Tricentennial Park
and the historical Peter D. Kiernan Plaza (former Union Station) in the heart of Albany,
New York. The caf6 was remodeled in 2020 costing the current owner approximately
$20,000, including a new exterior awning and upgraded appliances.

Mugshots is a local neighborhood favorite serving breakfast and lunch Monday thru
Friday for nearby businesses, working class individuals and traveiers; with numerous
foliowers and five-star reviews across popular social media platforms (Facebook,
Instagram, Yelp included with the business purchase.).Th" prospective owner Rifat
Sharmin, migrated from Bangladesh, has a strong entrepreneurial spirit and is ready to
emerge into taking over this caf6, and adding her own personal touch. Mugshots will
pride itself on offering coffee roasted by New York coffee roasters, serve bakery items
made fresh by local bakeries, and plans to source local products, when available.

\ /hile the menu will remain small and simple, the time and attention given to
everything they will serve makes Mugshots truly unique when looking for quaiiW
coffee, salads, sandwiches and other breakfast and lunch items. They will continue to
offer exceptional customer service and focus on increasing client return rates, allowing
for them to maintain a strong reputation with their clients and local community.

RiIat Sharmin is the prospective owner of Mugshots Caf6, and the underlying real estate

property that hosts the commercial space. Rifat is an entrepreneurial minded woman
who earned her bachelor's degree in Business Administration from Eastern University.
Rifat previously lived in Albany, New York near her family and friends; however, in
2019 she relocated to Boston, Massachusetts to accept a job opportunity. Rifat has always
been a dream for her to start her own business and becoming a homeowner, this
opportunity wiil provide Rifat with both as Rifat plans to occupy the 2na floor apartment
as her residence.



2

The sources and uses of the proposed project financing are follows:

There is typically a Financing Partner, in this case with the purchase price being

$200,000, it would be cost prohibitive to have two lenders providing the
financing.

COLLATERAL: Collateral for the Al Tech loan will be a First mortgage on property
located at 54 James Street and first position UCC lien on the business assets of Mugshots
Cafe.

GUARANTORS: The loan will require the personal guarantee of Ms. Rifat Sharmin.
Ms. Sharmin is recently engaged, her future husband will be relocating with her to
Albany and is currently in Retail Management. They will be sharing the expenses of
occupying the building so they don't need to rely on the ability of the cafd to pay the
mortgage and other bills affrliated with the property until the property can assist. Ms.
Sharmin will maintain her $48.000 a year salary from her employer in Boston as they are

allowing her to work remote.

BACKGROUND: With the assistance of a family friend and real estate advisor Brian
AmaraL they located 54 ]ames Street in Albany and instantly were interested in
purchasing. After conducting an analysis on Mug Shots and the property itself, it was
determined that the building is the best of both worlds, as it provides the opportunity to
be a business owrrer and homeowner all in one.

Rifat would live in the upstairs apartment and operate the ca{6 below, at a cost that is
less than or in close proximity to what she is currently paying for rent in Bostory MA
(with no additional business source of income). Furthermore, this caf6 will be a great
opportunity to own and operate an on-going business and with proper planning and
strategic growth, it should create employment opportunities for local individuals in the
community.

IAtrhile Mr. Amaral is experienced in real estate and property management, he is also
experienced in foodservice and retail management. MI. Amaral previously owned and
operated an award-winning retailcommercial bakery in Westem Massachusetts from
2A07 b 2013. Rilat requested his knowledge and expertise with inspecting and valuing
the equipmerrt included in the business sale as he was familiar with the equipment, and
requested he assist with projecting the inventory and start-up costs, as the process is

SOURCES USES
Al Tech Funds $180,000 Purchase $200,000
Owners Equitv 30,000 Closing Costs 10,000

Bank Financing 0

Total $210,000 Total $210,000
a



3

very similar between a bakery and a caf6. Mr. Amaral assisted Rifat with the start-up
cost planning, inventory, supplies, budgeting, and various standard operating
procedures. To clarify, the business purchase includes the equipment and current
inventory at time of sale. It is projected that the inventory obtained should last
approximately one to two weeks, allowing time for the business to produce cash flow, so

that additional inventory and supplies can be purchased.

In the unfortunate event the projections are not instantly attainabtre, if the business needs

additional capital to get started or fund purchase orders, Rifat has a risk management
plan in place as she is fortunate to have the financial support of her family that live in
Albany, NY and surrounding areas. Mr. Amaral will be assisting with the property
management.

Success Factors as described by Rifat:

Mugshots C#6 is primed for success for the foliowing reasons

Local businesses in the neighborhood are excited and eager to partner with
Mugshots due to their exemplary goodwill and commitment of serving quality
coffee and small plates and delivering exceptional customer service.

Mugshots has positioned itself to operate efficiently, allowing for a greater net
profit while keeping overhead costs minimal.
The interior style of the caf6, along with an upgraded technology factor will
position the caf6 to be a favorite amongst young, tech-sar,wy professionals and
university students.
There is a large population of Bengalis in the Albany, NY area that Mugshots
could target by adding a few cultural specialties to the menu that are not localIy
readily available.
As Mugshots ownership wiJl be living in the apartment above the business, they
will have the opportunity to better manage the property, business operations,
employees, etc., allowing for a safer, smoother, and more profitable operation.

a

a

a

a

a

FINANCIALS:
See attached financial information:

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Al Tech will be providing access to capital to a minority and

woman-owned business in downtown Albanv. Ms. Sharmin feels she will have 4

employees within 3 years.

STRENGTHS

to work remotely, current salary is $48,000.



4

WBAKNESS:

no personal debts

OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS

loan.



5

Personal Financial Statement:

ilam€ H':ir Sh::rrr,rn Eusiness Phcne .r,: rrrrrr:

. 1: Fatnc,rrr+ ll'ra. Afl .l
Itome aatdress Home phon€ lrrt.,i, r,',i i5:5i !,r'J{it}:lu

City, Starc, & Zip Codc Rlr,I::^ lLlA 
'i21?1

Busifiesr Harne qf ApplicantiBorro$rer lt r, . rilt '. '.',..; ::r

gu5ineEsAddressir{iiliif'r*r1ll,.f il]:{i{ir.j1'('isl 'i I ir iJ r ', '.i :'lil,

Sns,inesE Type: [,.t" I ounnersnlp []Sole Fropri*tor i,:r::.*;. ,:rri ..-,,:i:*- r: 'J[r.t "i,1it,r'(.rxr.

fhls infsrmation is current e* of lmonthlday,'yearl
i.rirririr Ji; *'il/,+ riJ#Iil's.r:rrr ir.r IiJj,'5n+,€CG.'oiln.1'.'a;S8 rrr r+il;i;r i,l' ua,: oirr,r.,ri,,j}dir Iilr Siii; ,l*-l

WOSB spplicsnt only. Married Ho

{ln:.h nn jr:rc,X ir l.:r^s A6c+rrntsFayaile .. ..
Nol€a Fa,€llc lo Bffnk$ ano Ot*6,3..

[8*B*ribe in $€i]tii]n ?i
hstfillrnBnt Accoi nt (Auto). .. .

gariR*s AcNnunts-. ..... -...
IRA Fr Othe. FelirBtflefll Af4*unl.

{DeseribE in $ectiofl 5}
Ac+punt5 & t{oie$ EECFivaEle... ..

{De54ribr in Seeli+n 5}
Li{e lnsuranc& *CsBh S{rrand*i vah* *nfu-..-.. -"--*-

{freec.ihf i{ Ssaii+n 8i
Sao$(s afid Bcflds

It i,. Paymerls
lflElsltrnefit AEco!.rFt {Sther}.

Mo, F*yrnents ____A
L*srl{si AsBin*! Llle, lftrurFE8e.

(0*6f,ribB ifl -l,s{ttien 3!
Re3I Estate

(S*E6ribs in geclion 4J

AuianqDbilEE.

{fi6e,6rlbc iil $e{iiofl 5, e,rd {xr{$$s
Yes$'fitsksli,iodBli

OlhEr FBrsonel F operty......"..".......
{B6ecrih6 ia $€ctitrfl 5l

olharAss*tg. -.... .-.....-.. ' t:'Lr.Ji - -. r

iLlt rr:,h: r'r !r:;:l.r.i-r i!

Mor{ages cn Rc€l Esl€is..-......
{SeEcribe in $e4ti0n 4}

U{pErd Tax*s-
(tse*er:be lo Seeticn E]

other Liabiliri*s.. .

tJr:ir br if 5{rrtrdl ii
T0:,rl L iihili. +i
t!i-'. ?t::._1.

Total
fu 1 r :r: r.rlual l:; Lrl r 

- r ;r,,,:-rr:::: :r;L t r r.

Section 1. $ourceoflnccme, Contingent Liabilities

Hi:d i-r-lalc lr,r:r:r'r*.

OihBr lrrrirfle {Ser(JibE i*ln",r}. ,.. . ,. . ,

Flet l$uBilffi#,nl krtorne...
As Endorser or Co.M*ker-... - -.... -.... -..-.-..".
i*qal (.llairrr A ..1.r{!l'ns:rlr .

Pmvrsrptr fpr Federal tnc+me Tax.......-. .....

:.ltf Er 5i:i;inl n*tl

ASsET5 LIABILITIES

Totrrl

It!

irr br i1,i:Jir 1d r r']rir! lr/rrr i.!rlrci',!: ilr'1rr':., r: r.rLi,: ill



6

Managenrent Ee:qme
{(opy A: Needed}

I.ld0fiK EXFEBIENCE; with Present

luti*: Eff:ri*rrtly mr*,rge r l;r:ge:rrririi;rit r:i E:;l,re:: &r:nral ftegirri rutrr-:llr,::r-r Fior:,5!'r,,il1
{Seifl.ilirtslf$i1dsl$.pHisl*Lult*:ti1E-t riur;:-ls*c-lri:t-i.Sx.,rs:::-!i:l:l{'tlgl--si.L!i
con;irj*r'.:,rlr':i' &,r' oiriirunu i ri.

I'lJmr 55t, i.r

Eat*ef effih 43'#4flgPt ,, , .-._-. lm*f &irth S.r{,!*,,SSnSadS,+h-*

R*riderx*T*hph0$e --.{_,, 11 _-_t

A.ddre-cr L5 F il:aderu Read" ,{pt _{. 8*rtan fu14 {,sde t'}2111

Are rrou ernokrved b$ U"5. Gor,rernrnent? Yes Hd *,/ Aeenrv

AreyrrrrU.5.Citiaem? fes { mr-lf Hq,&}ien RtBfutrffiifft Nu'rnhcr-

Hare ynu er.€r h*er! ffIrlrktrd nf any cinri*al nffrnce other than a rnisderrreannr inssluing a rfiotnr
qahld*? Yet*-Slm "d1. lf Yes* giiw d*t*fls br,&ru.

Degree or CertificateCollege er Technical Training Schoo! Dates Attended
LBsieil-, iJurver-crIv

-)1- I i '1t.1 1
iL i !_i.- lY L::''t': .: ::' L. tr ,:: i: {-ir-' ,' :-' -n-r"

Frorl uf ;'iliii 2L To ir*5eni Tri:e Ac"nrnirii.iti,"'E A!r!5t*rt

tuties Iel:'x'vical ,.v*ld srsreiiins fo: ers:ieer:-e:=ecrfr:;trcns. SL)*'i. and re$ur1.!
'#L'rf, x'or;!5rriE tnC itle tlatritc.dr-e flr l'rp.t!ir ),inl r.,: tr(t t.lt':5rfr.cer:e

: L,-':ip.. ,i'--1-.,t j'jtt ri.,' ei t ; --r:,:'r,i-i. ,l-::'-1,- Ir::'--t'_ t,:*

Si;ties Aglirt lrsjeri L4iiniiHe.E, &rchit*cis & Errgr-r*erlrr rro tc: l= ,irtrr, :i:ii;rts il:tnt,,1f,
r$$riJrr*t:rie draruriis B chase!. eiid de.rdlrne:. ed:trng s+e::i:retr{lni. tr.iikrnu Siriln:ittirtr.i i{;FI:'l

Pres.rre n uirriety of d$ruilent:! i.Jtte15" reD{fti" !E;.Edd:hEri!. rri:n-!"}i. BrerEntati$nr. i! eerr. fr{$ltlilf'
er:Ee*ge ref t:rtl ntetsf iit: Ii5i_!_ inC :ij frn.

' i'i'r1Fi-ir-i-.,t,,in '-f E:rlii' 'ilcbil I't

1. tn.rlp;-!';' :n':-tron .;:ni:-*;ell E-r're.:

r. iln-;*- i { I :li I t.r._*_Tu_*{il it li{i_:,11* .{; r'i 1t:-rriitt,re &::i:t*ii'l

ir: tl'1i?tii$!: i il nr l,[,,if L'r ]-5

IDr.,cATtoNi



7

Iturrh;rqr lllrtrilr .t .\rrn*tFiir.rtt:

rj ..'1;,1s;',.: r

:i "t ,,

L,:.ri \l

i4,,.rll[:t {I".\l.lt.\11. r\ l]:{}i
Rl..\1. l:rL\I1. f H{},tl:( I I{)\ 1l(}ll}:l-

I",. :':::rr. i'::.-.

- Lri;ii | .li: i

i,-,i:il\

i-.i

l.r,r,l

17..n1. .!r':,i :i;ri:t,

I7,ir;t. iir,.',i
1 .. .: t. ..,

r ir:;it;ri 1, ,r';:::i',

r tl -\1.,:

t)[cr$tin,.l [.rgr*nrer

l?...1. !.';;1" l;11;s

I i! ',, :.llr, -
[ :; ! ,lr-

i\',,,,-'r t-.'.-'
1.\:i!, r.ilil:

Rrrrr R*rll

1l ili
l-r;-ll. -ii ii-;r.

'. rr.1-l-ll '. .1,-L,l:

\.irir. ilrll

1 : ii.-:'

1 :.;..i -

q'i

! .i
\ ti

lr1al.lt,kl

i ji, i., lili i

j, I.t l,l! I

-.++ :

li,

._ .:, i '

I lr'

lil-r
':.:i-

i,i r' I

:-j

l-'ir 1i.::

rF'
: .-1 \,'l

1 ::r-

i..,-:

-r-

llll! rt. -\ lt-

. r;r:. I 1., rlr.'it i',: .,.lrl

.i; i (: .:: I !:ri ! '

l:i:.:L.l ! :::.r lrr; r, L:

LI ,. ti ii:ri.. l:'-',;ri-
1 ,:, r t-t t1-..\ - I \i -t :.-

+ lt'' .

.1.;!,t,

i :j

i tr,

r':j

'1- l{ ;

.1. i't'r
1"1-l'

{.r l-i, t

:!t_

i". rr.i

i.. +

r..,'i
l'r I

,:']": ,:

i.aa,:

i :-,.

-i; -

ii.,,4. il.r,t, .:..i-.i il.-::,r i1_lr:

I

l-{.+';;.

1l I i:._

: -.: r'--

I,,'

{
_t,. t1

L =+-t

5

i .\.i, I

l:.1 - r l -.r ,j j i r..r r rrr

,\nnrei{ srh l;ltrrr

1r \t.

ii''trrit..rl l,t,'!. iir'! !lui

1i':.,r;'ir, li ;111,.: l,-::r;ri \'.:i.,rrr. .

l.:.!.,, i;r, t 1. 1." ;i..;r I i;;iq

i i,:.. r r.

\i: I l){ti::lt:j l:li,.,:t!.

l':;:riii.,,il

t:i.-:J..

Iil.:l'. ir,. I ..i.:l',

I

: j..-lt.

,!

l-i.-ir:.

j I.r,i,,.

l-':ll

r'.: ) j

]

i,:ir-
t -r.l - ':

::,ri1

i 1.1,,'t

:, .a' .;

-1

i.i.:

{
:..-,.-

:-.: :-"

.\

.\-i I

:'!.{r ':

.).r

j.. 
'-\

ir,.ii. ,r.il';

; ,1,"; | ,,.r ....i;: I i;lr: i.-.r , .1" :.-,: t-i+l r,.; i -



I

MUGSHOTS

FROFIT & LOSS FORESAST

lui i. :rit3

'i!{-L-ltl i

5;il*: rt'ilo.'irr
ili.:t: ul il[L*ri: 5i]id

irtur Srr'si Frsf.t

i.:{Flfu5l!.

A{tvertil:Sn*

lnzuramre
Ucpme* and Feilrdts
OtrkeSupplias
Fapsti Froes*irq Ft**
Payroft'faam*

krnrtrt*
F@$rnfl*! Feet
SalarieE & &lapr
Teleptm*re

$r*r!eer"r fiornp

T:1tij,:liprr!er

r..t, lF i.rlr , E
tL I lltLu i L

nJ,l,i.e il.bi I ili.bni

1 1: i1"7.1

5;. i:i
rl3. -1+&

5b.721"

1"43,&1.1

61"1S?

15m
?tm

85

58fi
5r8

7,168

85

r."dm
46,eBE

r:s
il$&

*fim
74?
g0

53G

560

7,sff!
80

1*06B

49.668
tut3
irg6

350r!

7*7
q5

5Sl
593

8,$45
g6

!,144
51,5&il

14i!
515

6?"{tEt

lrr"st+

59,851 62/899

i iU,i t ?.t!i



9

Employment Letter:

VANDEMWEI$

X-G.'t/{rid**wil lrii,r**r:. : i.F

rqnden*{,rrrr,
ii.ri i1q11;';1 i5as1
f}l-,iii:t, |'1i1 ll,i I I ii

nr7."i;!_i.{1} rsi"
i 

'-r."111.i{ui 
sax

Srpl*r,rlrt ]rj. ;tI1

T$llfhtrn ltfikyeon*em,

Thls lekr ir [o eonfiff{ RitrHt sharifl*n is a!fien$y e*rylq@ as an,{ah.n}r}$ra"ti*s *,*d!iB&fit dnee litreh g,

3fit1 mskins *4&,01S0 e 6 ful}{iffie Bnrp&0!€B, BahrielfF. nik hs llre !{*te& tu ffirL rE{n{ffiy whe* needed.

F*i*ase rearfi nut rldltr any $lEtslirfi*.

$hee$.

rqw&#de r{q*j"&nid
i:-r*lit.: il';'il;ll
iit rj,*rt*r:liti
! , JlL,+f,f:


